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SOMERSET 
CPAs AND ADVISORS 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Board of Directors 
THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK 
Indianapolis, Indiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying statement of net position of THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC 

IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK (the Bond Bank), as of December 31, 2016, and the related statements of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bond Bank's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bond Bank's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial 
position of THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK, as of December 31, 2016, and 
the results of its revenues, expenses and changes in financial position and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The 2015 financial statements of THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK were 
audited by other auditors; whose report dated July 18, 2016, expressed an unmodified opinion on those 
statements. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 7 and the Schedules of the Bond Bank’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability and the Bond Bank’s contributions on pages 37 and 38 be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 
historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 19, 2017, on 
our consideration of THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering THE INDIANAPOLIS 
LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

June 19, 2017 
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THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 
 
As management of The Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank (Bond Bank), we offer readers of the 
Bond Bank’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Bond Bank 
for the year ended December 31, 2016.  All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of 
dollars and are approximate. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 For 2016, expenses exceeded revenues by $441K, which is reflected in the decrease in net position. 

 
 Total assets decreased from $4.41 billion at December 31, 2015 to $4.19 billion at December 31, 2016.  This 

is a decrease of approximately $220 million.  This decrease occurred primarily in A/R, restricted cash, and 
loans receivable. 

 
 During 2016, the Bond Bank issued $229.49 million in new and refunding bonds.  The Bond Bank’s Series 

2016 A bonds accounted for $176.78 million of the new bonds issued.  The proceeds of Series 2016 A bonds 
were used to refund the 2006 F bonds and continue to fund the Indianapolis Airport Authority’s Midfield 
Terminal project.  The Bond Bank’s Series 2016 B bonds accounted for $50.33 million of the new bonds 
issued.  The proceeds of Series 2016 B bonds were used to refund the 2008 A bonds and continue to fund 
the J.W. Marriott Hotel project.  The Bond Bank’s Series 2016 C bonds accounted for $2.38 million of the new 
bonds issued.  The proceeds of Series 2016 C bonds were used to supplement the Economic Development 
District’s Mass Ave and Pulliam Square projects.   

 
 The Bond Bank issued $55.50 million in new notes in 2016.  The Bond Bank’s Series 2016 A Notes 

accounted for $5.50 million of the new notes issued.  The proceeds of Series 2016 A Notes were used to fund 
the 16 Tech project.  The Bond Bank’s Series 2016 B Notes accounted for $50.00 million of the new notes 
issued.  The proceeds of Series 2016 B Notes were used to fund Stormwater District projects. 

 
 In 2016, the Bond Bank refunded bonds and notes of $257.34 million.  Also, the Bond Bank made principal 

payments of $178.11 million on bonds payable.  The Bond Bank made no principal payments on notes 
payable. 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Bond Bank’s basic financial 
statements.  The Bond Bank is an instrumentality of the City of Indianapolis and is maintained as a 
Proprietary Fund.  Proprietary Funds are used to report any activities for which income fees are charged to 
external users for goods and services.  In addition, Proprietary Funds must be used in situations where debt 
is backed solely by fees and charges.  A Proprietary Fund is accounted for in a manner similar to a 
commercial enterprise on the accrual basis of accounting.   
 
The Bond Bank’s financial statements include statements of net position, statements of revenues, expenses 
and changes in net position, statements of cash flows, and the notes to the financial statements.  All 
information included in this discussion and analysis is presented for the three most recent fiscal years to 
provide the opportunity for comparison between the years. 
 
The statements of net position present information on all of the Bond Bank’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present information showing how the 
Bond Bank’s net position changed during each year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.   

 
In contrast, the statements of cash flows are concerned solely with flows of cash and cash equivalents.  
Transactions are recorded when cash is received or exchanged, without concern of when the underlying 
event causing the transactions occurred. 

 
These financial statements can be found on pages 8 to 10 of this report. 
 
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 
11 to 37 of this report. 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial position.  In the case of the Bond 
Bank, liabilities exceeded assets by $29.33 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

 
The Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank’s Net Position  

 (In Thousands of Dollars) 
 
 December 31, 
    Restated 
 2016 2015 2014 
 
  Current assets $    623,282 $    445,097 $   408,360 
  Noncurrent assets   3,571,448    3,965,224      4,030,487  
   Total Assets   4,194,730    4,410,321    4,438,847  
 
  Deferred Outflows of Resources         34,783         39,096         36,880  
 
  Current liabilities 608,224 428,002  388,928 
  Long-term liabilities   3,615,656    4,015,357    4,080,048  
   Total Liabilities   4,223,880    4,443,359    4,468,976   
 
  Deferred Inflows of Resources              111                95              290  
 
  Net Position $        5,522  $       5,963   $       6,461  
 
  

Typically, loans receivable has increased year to year, as the Bond Bank issues debt funding the projects of 
the qualified entities.  As new and existing projects are undertaken and completed, additional bonds are 
issued on behalf of the qualified entities to fund the projects.  But in 2015 and 2016, the pay down of bonds 
and notes payable has exceeded new issuances of debt. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
 

The Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank’s 
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

(In Thousands of Dollars) 
 
      Year Ended December 31, 
               Restated 
 2016 2015 2014 
 
  Operating Revenues:  
   Interest  $ 168,716 $ 177,354 $ 189,035 
   Fees  2,735  2,922  2,905 
   Other                                11             164   
    Total Operating Revenues    171,451     180,287      192,104  
 
  Operating Expenses:  
   Interest  168,698 176,508 187,718 
   Administrative costs        1,447          1,821         1,863  
    Total Operating Expenses    170,145     178,329     189,581  
 
  Operating Income 1,306 1,958 2,523 
  Other Financing Uses      (1,747)       (2,456)       (4,170) 
  Increase (decrease) in net position (441) (498) (1,647) 
 
  Net Position:  
   Beginning of Year, as originally reported                         8,546  
   Correction of prior period balances                                     (438)  
 
   Beginning of Year            5,963              6,461              8,108    
      
   End of Year $    5,522  $     5,963  $    6,461  
 

The Bond Bank’s net position decreased by approximately $441K during the current fiscal year.  Key 
elements of this increase are as follows: 

 
Total operating revenues decreased by $8.84 million.  Interest income is received on loans receivable, as 
well as investments, and decreased $8.64 million.  Operating fees revenue decreased by $0.19 million. 
Other revenue decreased by $0.01 million. 
 
Total operating expenses decreased by $8.18 million.  Interest expense on bonds payable decreased 
$7.81 million.  The remainder of the operating expenses consists of administrative expenses, trustee fees 
and professional fees and decreased $0.37 million. 
 
Total other financing uses decreased by $0.71 million. 

 
The figures above include all trust activity, whose revenues and expenses, primarily interest-related, depend 
solely on the timing and payment structure of the bond and note issues.  Remove all trust activity, and the 
Bond Bank’s day-to-day operational division remains.  The Bond Bank’s operations experienced an overall 
net loss of $453K in 2016 and an overall net loss of $253K in 2015. 
 



 

6 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
 
The Bond Bank provides financial support to certain City of Indianapolis initiatives and properties.  They 
include Develop Indy, which offers a number of strategic resources to make doing business in Indianapolis 
profitable; Indianapolis Downtown Inc., which develops, manages and markets downtown Indianapolis; and 
Union Station, which leases out space for a wide variety of purposes, including retail and office use. 
Furthermore, the Bond Bank provides funding to aid the City with certain contracts and sponsorships 
throughout the year. 
 
The Bond Bank is able to help fund these initiatives, amongst others, with the revenue it generates via new 
issuance fees and its yearly continual fees on the outstanding debt balance of each bond or note issue at the 
beginning of the year (ranging from 10 to 2.7 basis points in 2016, with some issues having their fee waived 
altogether).  The fee revenue earned from those issues in which the City of Indianapolis serves as the 
qualified entity is offset by the monetary assistance the Bond Bank then provides back to the City.  In 2016, 
the financial support supplied to the aforementioned initiatives, properties, contracts, and sponsorships 
exceeded the fee revenues earned from bond and note issues in which the City of Indianapolis is the qualified 
entity, resulting in a net loss of $555 thousand.  In 2015, the financial support also exceeded fee revenues, 
resulting in a net loss of $215 thousand. 

 
 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 

Long-term Debt:  At the end of the current fiscal year, the Bond Bank had bonds and notes payable net of 
premium/discount of approximately $3.96 billion.  The bonds and notes payable are secured by specified 
revenue sources. 

 
The Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank’s Outstanding Debt 

(In Thousands of Dollars) 
 

 December 31, 
 2016 2015 2014 
 
  Bonds payable $3,889,148 $4,133,797 $4,200,613 
  Note payable 74,600 19,100 2,500 
 

During 2016, the Bond Bank issued $229.49 million in new and refunding bonds and $55.50 million in new 
notes payable. 
 
Following is a summary of the new bonds and notes issued in the current fiscal year. 
 
Bond Series 2016 A ($176,780,000) was used to refund the outstanding principal amounts of the Indianapolis 
Local Public Improvement Bond Bank Bonds, Series 2006 F, as well as to purchase the Indianapolis Airport 
Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 A.  A portion of the proceeds was used to pay the cost of 
issuance of the Series 2016 A Bonds as well as certain program expenses of the Bond Bank. 
 
Bond Series 2016 B ($50,325,000) was to refund the outstanding principal amounts of the Indianapolis Local 
Public Improvement Bond Bank Bonds, Series 2008 A, as well as to purchase the City of Indianapolis 
Redevelopment District Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 A (J.W. Marriott Hotel Project).  A portion of 
the proceeds was used to pay the cost of issuance of the Series 2016 B Bonds as well as certain program 
expenses of the Bond Bank. 
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED) 
 
Bond Series 2016 C ($2,380,000) was used to supplement the Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond 
Bank Bonds, Series 2014 A, as well as to purchase both the City of Indianapolis, Indiana Taxable Economic 
Development Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 A (Mass Ave. Project) and City of Indianapolis, 
Indiana Taxable Economic Development Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 B (Pulliam Square 
Project).  A portion of the proceeds was used to pay the cost of issuance of the Series 2016 C Bonds as well 
as certain program expenses of the Bond Bank. 
 
Note Series 2016 A ($5,500,000) was used to purchase the City of Indianapolis, Indiana Taxable Economic 
Development Tax Increment Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2016 A (16 Tech Project).  A portion of 
the proceeds was used to pay the cost of issuance of the Series 2016 A Notes as well as certain program 
expenses of the Bond Bank. 
 
Note Series 2016 B ($50,000,000) was used to purchase the City of Indianapolis, Indiana Stormwater District 
Notes of 2016 (Stormwater Project).  A portion of the proceeds was used to pay the cost of issuance of the 
Series 2016 B Notes as well as certain program expenses of the Bond Bank. 
 
Note Series 2016 C ($0) will be used to purchase the Indianapolis Public Transportation Corporation Bond 
Anticipation Notes, Series 2016 A (IndyGo public transit system).  It functions similar to a line of credit, with a 
maximum amount of funds available of $7,000,000.  As December 31, 2016, no funds were drawn out.  A 
portion of the proceeds will be used to pay certain program expenses of the Bond Bank.  It is set to mature on 
December 31, 2017. 
 
More detailed information about the Bond Bank’s debt is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements. 

 
REQUESTS OF INFORMATION 
 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Bond Bank’s finances.  Questions 
concerning any of this information should be addressed to The Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond 
Bank, 200 East Washington Street, Suite 2342, Indianapolis, IN 46204.



 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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2016 2015
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and equivalents 5,493,633$       5,378,775$       
Cash and equivalents-restricted 146,425,430 172,719,885
Interest receivable 73,504,217      76,415,533       
Investments held by trustee, at fair value 16,172,359 16,172,359
Loans receivable from qualified entities 380,766,801    173,153,741     
Receivables and advances to qualified entities-net of allowance
  for doubtful accounts of $94,434 in 2016 and $33,612 in 2015 580,608 906,605
Prepaid expenses and other assets 338,779 349,928

Total Current Assets 623,281,827    445,096,826     

Noncurrent Assets:
Loans receivable 3,571,448,402 3,965,224,368

Total Noncurrent Assets 3,571,448,402 3,965,224,368   

Total Assets 4,194,730,229 4,410,321,194

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on refunding of debt (net) 1,254,272        1,377,677         
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives 33,325,813      37,494,794       
Deferred outflows of resourses related to pensions 202,338 223,136

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 34,782,423 39,095,607

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Interest payable 72,706,623 75,394,533
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 350,967 129,052
Funds held for qualified entities 153,188,522 176,855,310
Notes payable-current 12,000,000      
Bonds payable-current 369,977,801    175,622,741     

Total Current Liabilities 608,223,913    428,001,636     

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Notes payable 62,600,000      19,100,000       
Bonds payable 3,519,170,589 3,958,174,462   
Derivitive instrument - rate swap 33,325,813      37,494,794       
Derivitive instrument - pension liability 559,136 587,720

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,615,655,538 4,015,356,976   

Total Liabilities 4,223,879,451 4,443,358,612   

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resourses related to pensions 111,055 94,795

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 111,055 94,795

NET POSITION 5,522,146$        5,963,394$        

See accompanying notes.

THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2016 and 2015
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2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES

Interest 168,715,447$  177,353,899$  
Fees 2,735,317 2,921,839
Other 11,348

Total Operating Revenues 171,450,764 180,287,086

OPERATING EXPENSES
Interest 168,697,969 176,507,500
Administrative costs 1,447,237 1,821,088

Total Operating Expenses 170,145,206   178,328,588    

OPERATING INCOME 1,305,558       1,958,498        

OTHER FINANCING USES
Allowance and expenditures for the City 1,477,430       2,257,355        
Allowance and expenditures for Union Station 269,376 198,873

Total Other Financing Uses 1,746,806       2,456,228        

DECREASE IN NET POSITION (441,248)         (497,730)          

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year 5,963,394         6,461,124         

End of Year 5,522,146$      5,963,394$      

See accompanying notes.

THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
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2016 2015
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Fees received 2,735,317$         2,921,839$         
Cash payments for salaries, administrative and other expenses (1,214,173)         (1,855,857)          

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,521,144          1,065,982           

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Maturities of loans to qualified entities 487,258,741      379,591,745       
Issuance of loans to qualified entities (301,095,835)     (333,678,211)       
Interest received on loans and investments 171,626,763      183,387,105       

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 357,789,669      229,300,639       

NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from debt issuance 300,578,928      367,067,287       
Deferred gain and loss on refunding of debt 123,405             (75,720)               
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 20,798               (169,185)             
Derivitive instrument - pension liability (28,584)              193,793              
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 16,260               (2,714)                 
Principal payments to reduce indebtedness (489,727,741)     (409,414,745)       
Transfers and expenditures for qualified entities (25,087,597)       29,192,429         
Interest paid on bonds and note payable (171,385,879)     (182,475,825)       

Net Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities (385,490,410)     (195,684,680)       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS (26,179,597)       34,681,941         

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of Year 178,098,660      143,416,719       

End of Year 151,919,063$     178,098,660$     

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Cash and equivalents 5,493,633$         5,378,775$         
Cash and equivalents-restricted 146,425,430      172,719,885       

151,919,063$     178,098,660$     

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
 CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income 1,305,558$         1,958,498$         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
 provided by operating activities:

Change in prepaid expenses and other assets 11,149               11,857                
Change in accounts payable 221,915             (57,974)               
Interest income (168,715,447)     (177,353,899)       
Interest expense 168,697,969      176,507,500       

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,521,144$          1,065,982$          

See accompanying notes.

THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
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THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 

 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Operations:  The Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank (the Bond Bank) was created 
in 1985 under applicable State of Indiana statutes.  The Bond Bank is an instrumentality of the City of 
Indianapolis (City) but is not a City agency and has no taxing power.  It has separate corporate and sovereign 
capacity and its board is composed of five directors appointed by the Mayor of the City.  The Bond Bank is 
authorized to buy and sell securities for the purpose of providing funds to the following: 

 
 City of Indianapolis, including all special taxing districts  Marion County, Indiana 
 Health and Hospital Corporation of Marion County  Indianapolis Airport Authority 
 Indianapolis Public Transportation Corporation (IndyGo)  Indianapolis-Marion Co. Building Authority 
 Capital Improvement Board of Managers (Marion Co., IN)  Fort Harrison Reuse Authority 
 Marion Co. Convention & Recreational Facilities Authority  Citizens Energy Group 

  
The Bond Bank enables the qualified entities to issue debt, in some circumstances, at a lower cost of 
borrowing and on more favorable terms than would be possible by financing on their own.  To accomplish its 
purpose, the Bond Bank may issue its own bonds or notes.  It also has general powers to enter into, make 
and perform contracts of every lawful kind to accomplish its purpose.  Bonds and notes are issued by the 
Bond Bank to provide funds to loan to the qualified entities and are limited obligations of the Bond Bank.  
They are secured and payable solely from principal and interest payments received by the Bond Bank on 
loans to qualified entities (evidenced by bonds and notes issued by the qualified entities) that were made 
from proceeds of the issuance of particular bonds or notes, and in certain issues, from designated funds and 
earnings held in trust.  Owners of the Bond Bank bonds and notes have a claim solely against the payments 
received on the respective loans to qualified entities made by the Bond Bank with proceeds from the issuance 
of particular bonds or notes (and other funds held in trust when applicable) and have no claims or rights 
against any other assets held by the Bond Bank.  Indiana statutes permit the Bond Bank to invest in securities 
authorized by its respective fiduciary documents.  These investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury 
and U.S. agencies, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, passbook savings, 
money market deposit accounts, guaranteed investment contracts and negotiable order of withdrawal 
accounts.  Repurchase agreements are required to be fully collateralized by interest-bearing obligations as 
determined by the current market value computed on the day the agreement is effective. 

 
The Bond Bank was established to develop infrastructure, promote education and tourism, and assist in the 
economic development of the City of Indianapolis.  Accordingly, financial support is provided to certain city 
initiatives and properties.  Such support indirectly maintains the credit rating of the Bond Bank, and helps it 
achieve its statutory purpose.  Board approved financial support expenditures represent support of historical 
city properties and economic development initiatives.  

 
Basis of Presentation:  The Bond Bank is accounted for as a Proprietary Fund.  The financial statements of 
the Bond Bank have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and using the economic resources 
measurement focus.  Accordingly, the Bond Bank recognizes revenue in the period earned and expenses in 
the period incurred.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles.  

 
Estimates:  Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  Those estimates and assumptions affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the 
reported revenues and expenses.  Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Cash Equivalents:  The Bond Bank considers all investments in commercial paper, certificates of deposit 
and money market deposits with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

 
Investments:  The Bond Bank categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by GAAP.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the 
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  Changes in the fair value of 
investments are included in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 
 
Loans to Qualified Entities:  Loans to qualified entities are recorded at cost and adjusted for amortization of 
discounts/premiums on a basis approximating a constant return rate over the remaining life of the loan. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources:  The Bond Bank reports decreases in net position that relate to future 
periods as deferred outflows of resources in a separate section of its statement of net position. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources:  The Bond Bank’s statement of net position reports a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources, which reflects an increase in net assets that applies to future periods. 
 
Pension Plan:  The employees of the Bond Bank participate in the Indiana Public Retirement System 
(INPRS).  The Bond Bank recognizes its proportionate share of the collective net pension liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension and pension expense.  
Deferred outflows and inflows represent changes in the Bond Bank’s allocated proportion from the previous 
year; differences between the Bond Bank’s contributions to the Plan and its proportionate share, actual Plan 
investment earnings and expected amounts, and expected and actual experience on the Plan included in 
determining pension expense; and the impact of changes in assumptions on the net pension liability, all of 
which are being amortized into pension expense over four and a half years.  Deferred outflows of resources 
also include contributions made to the Plan between the Plan’s measurement date for the net pension liability 
and the end of the Bond Bank’s fiscal year.  
 
Interest Rate Swaps:  The Bond Bank uses interest rate swaps to protect against the potential of rising 
interest rates.  The interest rate swaps are reported at fair value on the statement of net position; however, 
changes in fair value are deferred until the termination or expiration of the instruments.  The accumulated 
decrease in the fair value of the interest rate swaps are reported as a deferred outflow of resources. 
 
Original Issue Premiums and Discounts:  Original issue premiums and discounts on bonds are amortized 
using a method that approximates the effective interest method over the life of the bonds to which they relate. 
 
Bond Issuance Costs:  Bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred. 
 
Income Taxes:  The Bond Bank is exempt from federal and state income taxes. 
 
Defeasance of Debt:  Subject to specific covenants with bond or note holders, the Bond Bank considers debt 
to be defeased when cash or other assets are deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to 
provide for all future debt service payments on a specific obligation.  The related liability and assets held in 
trust for the related bonds are removed from the financial statements.  The difference between the cost of 
escrowed funds to defease debt and the net carrying amount of defeased debt is amortized as a component 
of interest expense over the life of the new debt or the defeased debt, whichever is shorter. 
 
New Accounting Principles:  In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value 
Measurement and Application (“GASB 72”).  The objective of this Statement is to address accounting and 
financial reporting issues related to fair value.  The Bond Bank adopted the provisions of GASB 72 in 2016.  
There was no significant impact on the financial statements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 73, ''Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and 
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.'' The Bond Bank is required to adopt Statement No. 73 for its 
fiscal year 2017 financial statements. 
 
In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 74, ''Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans 
Other Than Pension Plans''.  The Bond Bank is required to adopt Statement No. 74 for its fiscal year 2017 
financial statements. 
 
In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, ''Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions''.  The Bond Bank is required to adopt Statement No. 75 for its fiscal year 
2018 financial statements. 
 
In January 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 80, “Blending Requirements for Certain Component 
Units—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14”.  The Bond Bank is required to adopt Statement No. 80 
for its fiscal year 2017 financial statements. 
 
In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81, “Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements”.  The Bond 
Bank is required to adopt Statement No. 81 for its fiscal year 2018 financial statements. 
 
In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 82, “Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73”.  The Bond Bank is required to adopt Statement No. 82 for its fiscal year 2018 
financial statements. 
 
In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations”.  The Bond 
Bank is required to adopt Statement No. 83 for its fiscal year 2019 financial statements. 
 
In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, “Fiduciary Activities”.  The Bond Bank is required to 
adopt Statement No. 84 for its fiscal year 2020 financial statements. 
 
The effect of implementation of these Statements has not yet been determined. 
 
Reclassifications:  Items in the 2015 financials have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 presentation. 
 
Subsequent Events:  The Bond Bank has evaluated the financial statements for subsequent events 
occurring through June 19, 2017, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.  See Note 12.  

 
 

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Proceeds of certain note and bond issues are invested with various banks in their capacity as trustees under 
trust agreements executed concurrently with the indentures and are pledged to the repayment of certain 
notes payable and bonds payable.  The Bond Bank Act permits funds to be invested as provided in trust 
indentures executed by the Bond Bank and based on resolutions of its Board of Directors.   
 
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bond Bank held certain financial assets that are required to be 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.  All assets are considered to be Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy 
defined in Note 1. 
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
The Bond Bank’s deposits and investments at December 31, 2016, are summarized as follows: 
 
     Cost Fair Value 
 U.S. Government agency obligations $     25,619,417 $     25,619,417 
 Money market funds 116,150,013 116,150,013 
 Commercial paper 4,530,080 4,656,000 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 16,172,359 16,172,359 
 Cash            5,493,633           5,493,633  
   Total Deposits and Investments $   167,965,502  $   168,091,422  
 
The Bond Bank’s deposits and investments at December 31, 2015, are summarized as follows: 
 
     Cost Fair Value 
 U.S. Government agency obligations $     26,727,648 $     26,727,648 
 Money market funds 141,336,237 141,336,237 
 Commercial paper 4,529,388 4,656,000 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 16,172,359 16,172,359 
 Cash            5,378,775           5,378,775  
   Total Deposits and Investments $   194,144,407  $   194,271,019  
 
Deposits with Financial Institutions 
 
Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the Bond Bank’s deposits may not be returned to it.  
The Bond Bank’s cash is insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  From time to time, 
certain cash balances maintained by the Bond Bank exceed federally insured limits.  As of December 31, 
2016 and 2015, the Bond Bank had cash balances of $5,031,519 and $4,917,720, respectively, with custodial 
risk.  
 
Investments 
 
Investments are restricted for repayment of bonds and notes payable issued under the respective programs 
(see Note 4).  Funds deposited under investment agreements with banks and insurance companies earn a 
fixed interest rate and generally expire upon extinguishment of the debt issues to which they relate.  
Investments are also restricted to authorized investments per the applicable trust indentures. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Funds deposited under investment agreements with banks and insurance companies earn a fixed interest 
rate and generally expire upon extinguishment of the debt issues to which they relate.  Funds deposited 
under investment agreements with banks and insurance companies are unsecured.  As of December 31, 
2016, the Bond Bank had the following investments and maturities: 

 

   Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Investment Type Fair Value 

 

Less Than 1 

 

1-5 

 

6-10 

More 
Than 

10 
          

U.S. Government agency  
 obligations $  25,619,417 

 

$  25,619,417 
 

 
  

 
Money market funds 116,150,013 

 

116,150,013 
 

 
  

 
Commercial paper 4,656,000 

 

4,656,000 
 

 
  

 
Guaranteed investment  
 contracts 16,172,359 

 

16,172,359 

 

 

  

 $162,597,789  $162,597,789     

 
Custodial Credit Risk of Investments 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that the Bond Bank will not be able to recover the value of its deposits, 
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party if the counterparty fails.  
Investment securities are exposed to risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the 
Bond Bank, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in 
the Bond Bank’s name.   
 
Credit Risk Disclosure 
 
The following table provides information on the credit ratings associated with the Bond Bank’s investments at 
December 31, 2016: 

 
Credit Ratings S&P Fitch Moody's Fair Value 
U.S. Government agency 
 Obligations AAAm AAAmmf Aaa-mf $  25,619,417 

Money market funds AAAm AAAmmf Aaa-mf 116,150,013 

Chesham Fnc Chesh CP A-1 N/A P-1 4,656,000 

FSA Cap Mgmt Serv LLC GIC AA+ AAA A2 16,172,359 

Total Rated Investments    $162,597,789 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
There are no limits on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer.  The following shows an 
investment in an issuer that represents 5% or more of the total investments at December 31, 2016: 

 
 Bank of New York Cash Reserve 57% 
 Dreyfus Treasury & Agency Cash Management  9% 
 U.S. Government  16% 
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NOTE 3 - LOANS TO QUALIFIED ENTITIES 
 
The Board of Directors of the Bond Bank authorizes all purchases of qualified obligations.  Prior to 
presentation to the Board of Directors, Bond Bank management and independent consultants make an 
evaluation of each purchase.  Repayment of these obligations by the qualified entities is funded by many 
sources, including property tax revenues and user fees.  Loans to qualified entities, registered to the Bond 
Bank, are either serial, term or serial and term maturities. 
 
The Bond Bank's loans to qualified entities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: 
 
 2016 2015 
  Marion County Convention and Recreational Facilities 
   Authority Bonds of 1991, Series C, maturing January 1, 2017,  
   with interest at 5.5%.  $13,460,000 $26,225,000 
   
  Health & Hospital Corp. of Marion County Bonds of 1988,  
   Series A, maturing June 30, 2017 to December 30, 2019, 
   with interest at 7.4%.  6,140,000 7,905,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis Redevelopment District Subordinate Tax  
   Increment Revenue and Refunding Bonds Series 1999 A,  
   maturing February 1, 2017 to 2029, yields on capital   
   appreciation bonds ranging from 5.65% to 5.82%.  241,640,000 241,640,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Pension Bonds of 2013, Series A (also  
   known as 2005, Series A prior to the partial refunding)  
   maturing January 15, 2017 to 2022, with interest ranging  
   from 4.94% to 5.28%.  44,995,000  51,935,000 
  
  Health and Hospital Corporation of Marion County Series 2005, 
   maturing January 1, 2017 to 2025, with interest ranging from 
   4.35% to 5.25%.  16,305,000 17,820,000 
 
  Citizens Energy Group (formally City of Indianapolis Waterworks 
   District) Net Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 F, 
   maturing January 1, 2016 to 2029, with interest ranging from 
   4% to 5%, paid off ahead of schedule on December 19, 2016.  57,010,000    
 
  Citizens Energy Group (formally City of Indianapolis, Waterworks 
   District) Net Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 A,  
   maturing January 1, 2017 to 2022, with interest at 5.5%. 66,975,000 77,830,000 
 
  Indianapolis Airport Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 A, 
   maturing January 1, 2016 to 2036, with interest ranging from 
   4.75% to 5.00%, refunded on June 15, 2016 by the Indianapolis 
   Airport Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 A, 
   representing amounts maturing January 1, 2036.  219,995,000 
 
  Citizens Energy Group (formally City of Indianapolis, Waterworks 
   District) Net Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 B, 
   maturing January 1, 2022 to 2025, with interest at 5.25%. 70,410,000  70,410,000 
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NOTE 3 - LOANS TO QUALIFIED ENTITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Taxable Economic Development Revenue 
   Bonds, Series 2007 C, maturing June 1, 2017 to 2035, with 
   interest at 5.9%. $66,500,000  $67,810,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Flood Control District Refunding Bonds, 
   Series 2007 A, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2018, with 
   interest at 5%.  2,430,000  3,560,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Metro Thoroughfare District Refunding  
   Bonds, Series 2007 A, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2018, 
   with interest at 5%. 9,350,000  13,695,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Park District Refunding Bonds, Series 
   2007 A, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2018, with interest at 5%. 5,225,000  7,655,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Sanitary District Refunding Bonds, Series 
   2007 C, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2018, with interest at 5%. 12,270,000  17,970,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Redevelopment District Tax Increment 
   Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 A, maturing February 1, 
   2017 to 2021, with interest ranging from 4.000% to 4.125%. 3,760,000  4,510,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Taxable Economic Development Revenue 
   Bonds, 2007 (Glendale Mall), maturing February 1, 2017 to  
   2027, with interest ranging from 5.64% to 6.21%. 3,830,000  4,085,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Taxable Economic Development Revenue 
   Bonds, Series 2007 (PRF Accelerator), maturing February 1,  
   2017 to 2023, with interest at 6.2%. 3,025,000  3,360,000 
 
  Citizens Energy Group (formally City of Indianapolis,  
   Waterworks District) Net Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 A,  
   maturing January 1, 2026 to 2027, with interest at 4.75%.  1,500,000  1,500,000  
 
  Citizens Energy Group (formally City of Indianapolis,  
   Waterworks District) Net Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 B, 
   maturing January 1, 2017 to 2038 with interest ranging from 
   4.625% to 5.250%. 87,565,000  90,315,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Redevelopment District Bonds, Series  
   2008 A, maturing February 1, 2016 to 2038, with interest ranging  
   from 4% to 5%, refunded on October 19, 2016, by the City of  
   Indianapolis Redevelopment District Refunding Bonds, Series  
   2016 A, representing amounts maturing February 1, 2038.   53,860,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, MECA General Obligation Bonds, Series 
   2008 B, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2024, with interest 
   ranging from 4.75% to 5.60%. 23,410,000  25,930,000 
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NOTE 3 - LOANS TO QUALIFIED ENTITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  Citizens Energy Group (formally City of Indianapolis,  
   Waterworks District) Net Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 A,  
   maturing January 1, 2017 to 2038, with interest ranging from 
   4.00% to 5.63%. $526,860,000  $533,200,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Redevelopment District Subordinate Tax  
   Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 A,  
   maturing February 1, 2017 to 2020, with interest rate at 5%. 98,535,000  122,375,000 
 
  Fort Harrison Military Base Reuse District Tax Increment  
   Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, maturing February 1, 2017  
   to 2026, with interest ranging from 3.5% to 5.0%. 8,685,000  9,005,000 
 
  Indianapolis Public Transportation Corp. Revenue Bonds,  
   Series 2009 A, with interest at 4%, matured January 10, 2016.   875,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Building Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 
   2009 A, maturing January 1, 2017, with interest at 5%. 870,000  1,700,000 
 
  Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank Bonds,  
   Series 2010 A, issued by the Health and Hospital Corporation  
   of Marion County, IN, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2040,  
   with interest ranging from 4% to 6%. 167,550,000  168,785,000 
 
  Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank Bonds,  
   Series 2010 B, issued by the Indianapolis-Marion County  
   Building Authority, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2040, with  
   interest ranging from 5.00% to 6.12%. 447,990,000  458,620,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Redevelopment District Tax Increment  
   Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 A, maturing February 1, 2017 
   to 2025, with interest at 5%. 4,716,983  5,152,724 
 
  Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank Bonds,  
   Series 2010 A, issued by the City of Indianapolis, IN, maturing 
   February 1, 2017 to 2025, with interest ranging from 4.00% 
   to 5.13%.  15,920,000  16,890,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Economic Development Tax Increment  
   Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 D, maturing February 1, 2017 
   to 2035, with interest ranging from 3.25% to 5.15%. 4,790,000  4,955,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Sanitary District PILOT Revenue  
   Bonds, Series 2010 A, maturing January 1, 2019 to 2040, 
   with interest ranging from 4.13% to 5.00%. 159,515,000  159,515,000 
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NOTE 3 - LOANS TO QUALIFIED ENTITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indianapolis Airport Authority Bonds, Series 
   2010 L, remarketed October 1, 2012 and again on January 14, 
   2015, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2037, bearing interest at a 
   weekly rate, subject to swap agreement (see Notes 6 and 7).  $325,200,000  $332,600,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Economic Development Revenue Bonds,  
   Series 2011 A, maturing February 1, 2021 to 2036, with  
   interest ranging from 5.0% to 5.5%. 81,640,000  81,640,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Economic Development Taxable Revenue 
   Bonds, Series 2011 B, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2021,  
   with interest ranging from 3.81% to 4.81%. 11,375,000  13,435,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Redevelopment District Tax Increment 
   Revenue Multipurpose Bonds, Series 2011 A, maturing  
   February 1, 2017 to August 1, 2024, with interest ranging from 
   3% to 5%.  27,045,000  29,920,000 
 
  Marion County Convention & Recreational Facilities Authority  
   Excise Tax Lease Rental Revenue Refunding Senior Bonds, 
   Series 2011 A, maturing June 1, 2017 to 2021, with interest 
   ranging from 4% to 5%. 21,020,000  24,730,000 
 
  Citizens Energy Group (formally City of Indianapolis Waterworks 
   District) Net Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 A, maturing January 1, 
   2017 to 2041, with interest ranging from 3.25% to 5.13%. 53,915,000  55,040,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Economic Development Tax Increment 
   Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 C, maturing February 1, 2017  
   to 2036, with interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.75%. 24,010,000  24,730,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Stormwater District Bonds, Series 2011, 
   amended August 4, 2015, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2041,  
   with interest ranging from 2.13% to 5.00%. 14,735,000  14,885,000 
 
  Marion County Convention and Recreational Facilities Authority 
   (MCCRFA) Excise Taxes Lease Rental Revenue Refunding 
   Senior Bonds, Series 2011 B, maturing June 1, 2022 to 2027,  
   with interest at 5%. 20,010,000  20,010,000 
 
  Marion County Convention and Recreational Facilities Authority 
   (MCCRFA) Excise Taxes Lease Rental Revenue Refunding 
   Subordinate Bonds, Series 2011 A (1999 B piece), maturing 
   June 1, 2017 to 2021, with interest at 5%. 11,520,000  13,435,000 
 
  Marion County Convention and Recreational Facilities Authority 
   (MCCRFA) Excise Taxes Lease Rental Revenue Refunding 
   Subordinate Bonds, Series 2011 A, maturing June 1, 2017  
   to 2027, with interest ranging from 4.75% to 5.00%. 163,805,000  171,170,000 
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NOTE 3 - LOANS TO QUALIFIED ENTITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  Indianapolis Public Transportation Corporation General  
   Obligation Bonds, Series 2012 (2002 piece), maturing  
   January 10, 2017, with interest at 5.13%. $   1,875,000  $   2,180,000 
 
  Marion County Convention and Recreational Facilities Authority 
   (MCCRFA) Excise Taxes Lease Rental Revenue Refunding  
   Senior Bonds, Series 2012 A, maturing June 1, 2017 to 2021,  
   with interest ranging from 1.93% to 3.06%. 28,835,000  34,260,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Redevelopment District Tax Increment  
   Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 A, maturing February 1, 2017  
   to August 1, 2020, with interest at 3.34%. 1,990,000  2,145,000 
 
  Indianapolis Airport Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds,  
   Series 2012 A, maturing January 1, 2017 to July 1, 2019, with 
   interest at 1.25%. 21,530,000  29,455,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Economic Development District Taxable  
   Special Program Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 I (formally  
   2004 B), maturing April 1, 2017 to 2030, with interest ranging 
   from 1.25% to 3.60%. 6,430,000  6,820,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Economic Development District Special  
   Program Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 J (formally 2004 C), 
   maturing April 1, 2017 to 2039, with interest ranging from 
   2% to 5%.  15,820,000  16,080,000 
 
  Indianapolis-Marion County Building Authority Qualified  
   Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 A, maturing January 15, 
   2017 to 2040, with interest ranging from 3% to 5%. 39,320,000  40,200,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Refunding Bonds of 2013,  
   Series A for the Parks District, maturing January 1, 2017 
   to 2018, with interest at 5.25%. 991,000  1,451,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Refunding Bonds of 2013,  
   Series A for the Metropolitan Thoroughfare District, maturing 
   January 1, 2017 to 2018, with interest at 5.25%. 2,278,000  3,334,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Refunding Bonds of 2013,  
   Series A for the Flood Control District, maturing January 1,    
   2017 to 2018, with interest at 5.25%. 463,000  676,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Refunding Bonds of 2013,  
   Series A for the Sanitary District, maturing January 1, 
   2017 to 2018, with interest at 5.25%. 2,334,000  3,411,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana, Stormwater District, Refunding  
   Revenue Bonds of 2013, Series A, maturing January 1, 
   2017 to 2026, with interest ranging from 3.25% to 5.00%.  35,055,000 36,615,000
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NOTE 3 - LOANS TO QUALIFIED ENTITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  Indianapolis-Marion County Building Authority Bonds, Series  
   2013 (2003 B piece), maturing January 15, 2017 to 2023,  
   with interest ranging from 4% to 5%. $5,560,000  $6,225,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Redevelopment District Tax Increment 
   Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 A, maturing February 1, 
   2017 to 2029, with interest ranging from 2% to 5%. 22,130,000  22,920,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Economic Development Tax  
   Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 A, maturing  
   February 1, 2030, with interest at 5%. 14,270,000  14,270,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Redevelopment District Tax Increment 
   Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 A, maturing February 1, 2030, 
   with interest at 5%. 3,915,000  3,915,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Economic Development Tax  
   Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 B, maturing  
   February 1, 2030, with interest at 5%. 1,865,000  1,865,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana, IndyRoads Revenue Refunding  
   Bonds, Series 2013 A, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2019, 
   with interest ranging from 4% to 5%. 4,300,000  5,910,000 
 
  Indianapolis Airport Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds,  
   Series 2013 A, maturing January 1, 2017 to July 1, 2018, 
   interest at 1.8%. 11,690,000  12,135,000 
 
  Indianapolis Airport Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds,  
   Series 2013 B, maturing January 1, 2017 to July 1, 2018, 
   interest at 1.61%. 20,135,000  21,425,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Economic Development Tax  
   Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 A, 2014 C, and 
   2014 D, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2031, with interest 
   ranging from 3% to 5%. 46,510,000  47,415,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Taxable Economic Development 
   Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 B and 2014 E,  
   maturing February 1, 2019 to 2024, with interest ranging from 
   2.30% to 3.43%. 3,585,000   3,585,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Redevelopment District Tax  
   Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, maturing  
   February 1, 2017 to 2029, with interest ranging from 3.0% to 4.5%. 10,115,000  10,810,000 
 
  Indianapolis Airport Authority Series 2014 A Refunding Bonds, 
   maturing January 1, 2017 to 2034, with interest from 3% to 5%. 165,340,000  165,340,000 
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NOTE 3 - LOANS TO QUALIFIED ENTITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana IndyRoads Revenue Bonds,  
   Series 2015 A, maturing January 1, 2020 to 2035, with 
   interest ranging from 3% to 5%. $35,000,000  $35,000,000 
 
  City of Lawrence, Indiana Fort Harrison Reuse Authority Fort 
   Harrison Military Base Reuse District Tax Increment Revenue 
   Bonds, 2015 A, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2035, with  
   interest ranging from 3% to 4%. 9,830,000  10,415,000 
 
  City of Lawrence, Indiana Fort Harrison Reuse Authority Fort 
   Harrison Military Base Reuse District Tax Increment Revenue 
   Refunding Bonds, 2015 B, maturing February 1, 2017 to  
   August 1, 2028, with interest ranging from 3% to 4%. 6,840,000  7,330,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana IndyRoads Revenue Bonds,  
   Series 2015 B, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2035, with  
   interest ranging from 3% to 5%. 35,000,000  35,000,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis Redevelopment District Tax Increment  
   Revenue Bonds 2015, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2030 
   with interest at 3.3%. 1,423,000  1,500,000 
 
  Indianapolis Airport Authority Series 2015 A Refunding Bonds, 
   maturing January 1, 2023 to 2033, with interest from 4% to 5%. 178,690,000  178,690,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2015,  
   maturing July 15, 2017 to 2021, with interest at 1.76%. 8,675,000  9,485,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Economic Development Tax 
   Increment Revenue Notes, Series 2015 A, maturing  
   February 1, 2020, with interest at 1.98%. 7,100,000  7,100,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Taxable General Revenue Notes,  
   Series 2015, maturing December 1, 2017, with interest at 2.12%. 12,000,000  12,000,000 
 
  Indianapolis Airport Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds,  
   Series 2016 A, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2036, with  
   interest ranging from 2.68% to 5.00%. 176,780,000   
 
  City of Indianapolis Redevelopment District Refunding Bonds, 
   Series 2016 A, maturing February 1, 2021 to 2038, with 
   interest ranging from 3% to 5%. 50,325,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana, Taxable Economic Development  
   Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 A & B, maturing 
   February 1, 2017 to 2021, with interest at 2.39%. 2,380,000 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Taxable Economic Development  
   Tax Increment Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Series  
   2016 A, maturing January 26, 2018, with interest at 1.82%. 5,500,000
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NOTE 3 - LOANS TO QUALIFIED ENTITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  City of Indianapolis, Indiana Stormwater District Notes of 2016,  
   maturing July 1, 2019, with interest at 1.36%.  $     50,000,000       $                        
       3,914,375,983  4,116,649,724 
  Plus/(Less):  Unamortized discount/premium         37,839,220          21,728,385 
       3,952,215,203  4,138,378,109 
  Less:  Current Portion of Loans Receivable      (380,766,801)      (173,153,741) 
 
   Long-term Portion of Loans Receivable  $3,571,448,402  $3,965,224,368  
 
 
NOTE 4 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE 
 
The faith, credit, and taxing power of the City of Indianapolis or any political subdivision thereof are not 
pledged to the payment of principal and interest on these obligations.  However, certain series of Bond Bank 
bonds were fully insured at December 31, 2016 and 2015, by private insurance policies. All of the bonds 
issues listed below are either serial or serial and term maturities. 

 
The Bond Bank's bonds payable at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows: 

 
 2016 2015 
  Series 1992 B Bonds, maturing January 10, 2017 to 2020,  
   with interest at 6%.  $     7,975,000 $    9,690,000 
 
  Series 1999 E Refunding Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017  
   to 2029, yields on capital appreciation bonds ranging from 
   5.65% to 5.82%.  241,640,000 241,640,000  
 
  Series 2005 E Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017, with interest  
   at 5%.  The carrying value of the debt represents $13,495,000  
   and $26,295,000 of the Series 2005 E Bonds outstanding at  
   December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, net of unamortized  
   gain on defeasance of $0 and $32,948 at December 31, 2016 
   and 2015, respectively.  13,495,000 26,327,948 
 
  Series 2005 F Bonds, maturing January 1, 2016 to 2029, with  
   interest ranging from 4% to 5%, paid off ahead of schedule  
   on December 19, 2016.   57,010,000 
   
  Series 2006 A Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2022, 
   with interest at 5.5%.  66,975,000  77,830,000 
 
  Series 2006 F Bonds, maturing January 1, 2016 to 2036, with  
   interest ranging from 4.75% to 5.00%, refunded on June 15, 
   2016, by the Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond 
   Bank Bonds, Series 2016 A, representing amounts maturing 
   January 1, 2036.    219,995,000 
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NOTE 4 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  Series 2007 B Bonds, maturing January 1, 2022 to 2025, with 
   interest at 5.25%.  The carrying value of the debt represents  
   $70,410,000 and $70,410,000 of the Series 2007 B Bonds  
   outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 2015, net of unamortized  
   gain on defeasance of $71,194 and $82,156 at December 31,  
   2016 and 2015, respectively.  $  70,481,194  $  70,492,156 
 
  Series 2007 C (Indianapolis Colts, Inc. Project), maturing  
   June 1, 2017 to 2035, with interest at 5.9%.  66,500,000  67,810,000 
 
  Series 2007 D, Refunding Bonds, maturing February 1, 
   2017 to 2018, with interest at 5%.  29,275,000  42,880,000 
 
  Series 2007 E, Refunding Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 
   to 2021, with interest ranging from 4.00% to 4.13%.  The 
   carrying value of the debt represents $3,760,000 and $4,510,000  
   of the Series 2007 E Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2016 
   and 2015, respectively, net of unamortized gain on defeasance of  
   $860 and $1,326 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 3,760,860  4,511,326 
 
  Glendale Mall Taxable Bonds, 2007 G, maturing February 1,   
   2017 to 2027, with interest ranging from 5.64% to 6.21%.  3,830,000  4,085,000 
 
  Series 2007 K Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2023, 
   with interest at 6.2%.  3,025,000  3,360,000 
 
  Series 2007 L Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2038, 
   with interest ranging from 4.625% to 5.250%.  89,065,000  91,815,000 
 
  Series 2008 A Bonds, maturing February 1, 2016 to 2038, with 
   interest ranging from 4% to 5%, refunded on October 19, 2016 
   by the Indianapolis Local Public Improvement Bond Bank  
   Bonds, Series 2016 B, representing amounts, maturing 
   February 1, 2038.    53,860,000 
 
  Series 2008 B Bonds, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2024, 
   with interest ranging from 4.75% to 5.60%.  23,410,000  25,930,000 
 
  Series 2009 A Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2038, 
   with interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.63%. 526,860,000  533,200,000 
 
  Series 2009 B Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2020, 
   with interest at 5%. 98,535,000  122,375,000 
 
  Series 2009 D Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2026, 
   with interest ranging from 3.5% to 5.0%. 8,685,000  9,005,000 
 
  Series 2009 F Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017, with  
   interest at 5%. 870,000  2,575,000 
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NOTE 4 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  Series 2010 A Bonds, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2040, 
   with interest ranging from 4% to 6%. $167,550,000  $168,785,000 
 
  Series 2010 B Bonds, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2040, 
   with interest ranging from 5.000% to 6.116%. 447,990,000  458,620,000 
 
  Series 2010 C Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2025, 
   with interest at 5%. 4,716,983  5,152,724 
 
  Series 2010 D Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2025, 
   with interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.13%. 15,920,000  16,890,000 
 
  Series 2010 E Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2035, 
   with interest ranging from 3.25% to 5.15%. 4,790,000  4,955,000 
 
  Series 2010 F Bonds, maturing January 1, 2019 to 2040, with 
   interest ranging from 4.13% to 5.00%. 159,515,000  159,515,000 
 
  Series 2010 L Bonds, remarketed October 1, 2012, again on 
   January 14, 2015, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2037, bearing  
   interest at a weekly rate, subject to swap agreement (see 
   Notes 6 and 7). 325,200,000  332,600,000 
 
  Series 2011 A Bonds, maturing February 1, 2021 to 2036, 
   with interest at 5.25%. 81,640,000  81,640,000 
 
  Series 2011 B Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2021,  
   with interest ranging from 3.81% to 4.81%. 11,375,000  13,435,000 
 
  Series 2011 C Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2024, 
   with interest ranging from 3% to 5%. 27,045,000  29,920,000 
 
  Series 2011 D Bonds, maturing June 1, 2017 to 2021, with 
   interest ranging from 4% to 5%. 21,020,000  24,730,000 
 
  Series 2011 E Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2041, 
   with interest ranging from 3.25% to 5.13%.  53,915,000 55,040,000 
 
  Series 2011 F Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2036, 
   with interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.75%.  24,010,000 24,730,000 
 
  Series 2011 I Bonds, maturing June 1, 2022 to 2027, with 
   interest at 5%. 20,010,000  20,010,000 
 
  Series 2011 K Bonds, maturing June 1, 2017 to 2027, with 
   interest ranging from 4.75% to 5.00%. 175,325,000  184,605,000 
 
  Series 2012 A Bonds, maturing January 10, 2017, with 
   interest at 2.05%. 1,680,000  2,050,000 
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NOTE 4 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 
 
 2016 2015 
 
  Series 2012 B Bonds, maturing June 1, 2017 to 2021, with 
   interest ranging from 1.934% to 3.056%. $  28,835,000  $  34,260,000 
 
  Series 2012 F Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to August 1, 
   2020, with interest at 3.34%. 1,990,000  2,145,000 
 
  Series 2012 H Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to July 1,  
   2019, with interest at 1.25%. 21,530,000  29,455,000 
 
  Series 2012 I Bonds, maturing April 1, 2017 to 2030, with 
   interest ranging from 1.25% to 3.60%. 6,430,000  6,820,000 
 
  Series 2012 J Bonds, maturing April 1, 2017 to 2039, with 
   interest ranging from 2% to 5%. 15,820,000  16,080,000 
 
  Series 2013 A Bonds, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2040, 
   with interest ranging from 3% to 5%. 39,320,000  40,200,000 
 
  Series 2013 B Bonds, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2022, 
   with interest ranging from 1.090% to 2.469%. 53,160,000  61,305,000 
 
  Series 2013 C Bonds, maturing January 10, 2017 to 2018, 
   with interest ranging from 2% to 4%. 6,225,000  9,185,000 
 
  Series 2013 D Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2026, 
   with interest ranging from 3.25% to 5.00%. 35,055,000  36,615,000 
 
  Series 2013 E Bonds, maturing January 15, 2017 to 2023, 
   with interest at 2.14%. 6,085,000  6,885,000 
 
  Series 2013 F Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2030, 
   with interest ranging from 2% to 5%. 42,180,000  42,970,000 
 
  Series 2013 H Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2019, 
   with interest ranging from 4% to 5%.  4,300,000  5,910,000 
 
  Series 2013 I Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to July 1, 
   2018, with interest at 1.8%. 11,690,000  12,135,000 
 
  Series 2013 J Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to July 1, 
   2018, with interest at 1.61%. 20,135,000  21,425,000 
 
  Series 2014 A Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2031, 
   with interest ranging from 3% to 5%. 46,510,000  47,415,000 
 
  Series 2014 B Bonds, maturing February 1, 2019 to 2024, 
   with interest ranging from 2.30% to 3.43%. 3,585,000  3,585,000 
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NOTE 4 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 
 

 2016 2015 
 
  Series 2014 C Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2029, 
   with interest ranging from 3.0% to 4.5%. $  10,115,000  $  10,810,000 
 
  Series 2014 D Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2034, 
   with interest ranging from 3% to 5%. 165,340,000  165,340,000 
 
  Series 2015 A Bonds, maturing January 1, 2020 to 2035, 
   with interest ranging from 3% to 5%.  35,000,000 35,000,000 
 
  Series 2015 B Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2025, with 
   interest ranging from 3% to 5%.  The carrying value of the  
   debt represents $15,475,000 and $17,915,000 of the Series 
   2015 B Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
   respectively, net of unamortized loss on defeasance of $407,937 
   and $509,962 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.  15,067,063  17,405,038 
 
  Series 2015 C Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2035, 
   with interest ranging from 3% to 4%. 9,830,000  10,415,000 
 
  Series 2015 D Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to August 1, 
   2027, with interest ranging from 3% to 4%. 6,840,000  7,330,000 
 
  Series 2015 E Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2035, 
   with interest ranging from 3% to 5%. 35,000,000  35,000,000 
 
  Series 2015 F Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2030, 
   with interest at 3.25%. 1,423,000  1,500,000 
 
  Series 2015 H Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2041, with 
   interest ranging from 2.125% to 5.000%. The carrying value  
   of the debt represents $14,735,000 and $14,885,000 of the Series 
   2015 H Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2016 and 2015,  
   respectively, net of unamortized loss on defeasance of $918,389 
   and $984,145 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.  13,816,611  13,900,855 
 
  Series 2015 I Bonds, maturing January 1, 2023 to 2033, 
   with interest ranging from 4% to 5%. 178,690,000  178,690,000 
 
  Series 2015 K Bonds, maturing January 15, 2017 to July 15, 
   2021, with interest at 1.76%.   8,675,000  9,485,000 
 
  Series 2016 A Bonds, maturing January 1, 2017 to 2036, 
   with interest ranging from 2.68% to 5.00%.  176,780,000 
 
  Series 2016 B Bonds, maturing February 1, 2021 to 2038, 
   with interest ranging from 3% to 5%.  50,325,000 
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NOTE 4 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 
 

 2016 2015 
 

  Series 2016 C Bonds, maturing February 1, 2017 to 2021, 
   with interest at 2.39%.  $       2,380,000  $                         
       3,848,215,711 4,108,335,047 
  Plus:  Deferred charges          1,254,272           1,377,677    
       3,849,469,983 4,109,712,724 
  Plus:  Unamortized discount/premium         39,678,407         24,084,479 
       3,889,148,390  4,133,797,203 
  Less:  Current Portion of Bonds of Payable      (369,977,801)      (175,622,741) 
 

   Long-term Portion of Bonds Payable  $3,519,170,589  $3,958,174,462  
 
All of the bonds issues listed above are either serial or serial and term maturities. 
 
The Bond Bank's notes payable at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are summarized as follows: 
 
 2016 2015 
 

  Series 2015 A Notes dated May 20, 2015, maturing  
   February 1, 2020, with interest at 1.98%.       $ 7,100,000 $ 7,100,000 
 
  Series 2015 B Notes dated December 22, 2015, maturing  
   December 1, 2017, with interest at 2.12%.      12,000,000  12,000,000 
 
  Series 2016 A Notes dated January 28, 2016, maturing  
   January 26, 2018, with interest at 1.82%.       5,500,000  
 
  Series 2016 B Notes dated July 8, 2016, maturing July 1, 
   2019, with interest at 1.36%.       50,000,000                          
       74,600,000  19,100,000 
  Less:  Current Portion of Notes Payable       12,000,000                            
      
  Long-term Portion of Notes Payable  $   62,600,000   $   19,100,000   
 
Scheduled principal payments due on bonds and notes payable outstanding at December 31, 2016, are 
summarized as follows: 
 
    Payable In Principal Interest Debt Service 
 

     2017 $  381,977,801 $   162,688,922 $  544,666,723 
     2018 191,678,977 153,323,093 345,002,070 
     2019 201,337,326    146,580,624 347,917,950 
     2020 170,710,909 139,371,762 310,082,671 
     2021 173,720,786 132,499,133 306,219,919 
     2022-2026 895,348,184 557,550,285 1,452,898,469 
     2027-2031 853,656,000 372,217,475 1,225,873,475 
     2032-2036 749,325,000 172,885,974 922,210,974 
     2037-2041     306,315,000      31,017,003     337,332,003 
      3,924,069,983 1,868,134,271  5,792,204,254 
 Plus:  Unamortized discount on bonds       39,678,407                                    39,678,407 

      $3,963,748,390  $1,868,134,271  $5,831,882,661
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NOTE 4 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) 
 
The Bond Bank's bonds and notes payable rollforward schedules at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are 
summarized as follows: 
 
              BONDS        NOTES    
 
  Total Outstanding Debt at December 31, 2014  $4,200,612,552  $       2,500,000 
 
  Total Additions 2015  311,070,000  19,100,000 
 
  Total Deductions 2015       (406,914,745)        (2,500,000) 
 
  Outstanding Debt     4,104,767,807      19,100,000  
        
  Add:  Change In Unamortized Discount/Premium          29,029,396                              
 
  Total Outstanding Debt at December 31, 2015  $4,133,797,203  $     19,100,000  
 
  Total Additions 2016  229,485,000  55,500,000 
 
  Total Deductions 2016      (489,727,741)                            
 
  Outstanding Debt   3,873,554,462        74,600,000  
        
  Add:  Change In Unamortized Discount/Premium          15,593,928                              
 
  Total Outstanding Debt at December 31, 2016  $3,889,148,390  $    74,600,000  
 
During 2016, the Bond Bank’s Series 2016 A bonds were issued for $176.78 million and the proceeds of 
Series 2016 A bonds were used to refund the 2006 F bonds and continue to fund the Indianapolis Airport 
Authority’s Midfield Terminal project.  The cash flow difference between the debt service on the 2006 F bonds 
and the new debt was $75,986,552 and the net present value savings were $37,670,068. 
 
During 2016, the Bond Bank’s Series 2016 B bonds were issued for $50.33 million and the proceeds of 
Series 2016 B bonds were used to refund the 2008 A bonds and continue to fund the J.W. Marriott Hotel 
project.  The cash flow difference between the debt service on the 2008 A bonds and the new debt was 
$8,908,820 and the net present value savings were $7,876,510. 
 

 
NOTE 5 - DEFEASED DEBT  

 
The outstanding balance of defeased debt which is not included in the financial statements amounted to 
$154,780,000 as of December 31, 2016 and $105,290,000 as of December 31, 2015. 

 
 

NOTE 6 - SWAP AGREEMENTS 
 

Objective of the Swap:  In order to protect against the potential of rising interest rates, the Bond Bank 
entered into two pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap. 
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NOTE 6 - SWAP AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Terms, Fair Values and Credit Risk:  The terms, including, the fair values and credit ratings of the 
outstanding swaps as of December 31, 2016, are as follows.  The notional amount of the swaps match the 
principal amounts of the associated debt.  The Bond Bank's swap agreements contain scheduled reductions 
to the outstanding notional amount that is expected to approximately follow scheduled or anticipated 
reductions in the associated "bonds and notes payable" category. 

 

Associated 

Bond/Note Issue 

Notional 

Amounts 

Effective 

Date 

Fixed 

Rate Paid 

Floating 

Rate Option 

Fair 

Values 

Swap 

Termination 

Date 

Counterparty 

Credit Rating 

S&P/Fitch/ 

Moody’s 

        

2010L – IAA (L-1) $100,000,000 7/1/2008 3.786% 75% of USD-LIBOR-BBA  $ (22,310,568) 1/1/2033 AA-/AA/Aa2 

2010L – IAA (L-2)   $50,000,000 7/1/2008 3.778% 75% of USD-LIBOR-BBA    (11,015,245) 1/1/2033 A+/A/Baa1 

     $ (33,325,813)   

       
 

Fair Value:  Because interest rates declined, the swaps had negative fair value as of December 31, 2016.  
The negative fair values may be countered by reductions in total interest payments required under the 
variable-rate bond, creating lower synthetic interest rates.  Since the coupon on the Bond Bank’s variable-rate 
bond adjusts to changing interest rates, the bond does not have a corresponding fair value increase.   
 
Credit Risk:  As of December 31, 2016, the Bond Bank was not exposed to credit risk because the swaps 
had negative fair values.  However, should interest rates change and the fair values of the swaps becomes 
positive, the Bond Bank would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivatives’ fair values. 
 
The Bond Bank has executed swap transactions with various counterparties in the past.  But as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, two swaps equaled 100% of the notional amount of swaps outstanding. They 
are held by two different counterparties. Those counterparties are rated AA-/AA/Aa2 and A+/A/Baa1, 
respectively. 
 
Interest Rate Risk:  The Bond Bank is exposed to interest rate risk on its pay-fixed, receive-variable interest 
rate swaps associated with its Series 2010 L variable rate debt.  When LIBOR decreases, the Bond Bank 
receives a lower payout from the swaps, and its net payments on the swaps increase. 
 
Basis Risk:  The Bond Bank is not exposed to basis risk because the variable-rate payments received by the 
Bond Bank are based on an index that coincides with the interest rates the Bond Bank pays on its Series 
2010L variable rate debt. 
 
Termination Risk:  The Bond Bank or the counterparties may terminate the swaps if the other party fails to 
perform under the terms of the contract.  If the swaps are terminated, the associated variable-rate bond would 
no longer carry a synthetic interest rate.  Also, if at the time of the termination, the swaps have negative fair 
values, the Bond Bank would be liable to the counterparties for a payment equal to the swaps’ fair values. 
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NOTE 6 - SWAP AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Swap Payments and Associated Debt:  As of December 31, 2016, debt service requirements of the Bond 
Bank’s outstanding variable rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the 
same, for their term are as follows: 

 
Year Ending 
December 31 

 
    Principal 

 
       Interest 

      Interest Rate 
     Swaps, Net 

 
          Total 

  
2017  $       1,656,900 $           5,059,489 $          6,716,389
2018 1,656,900 5,059,489 6,716,389
2019 1,656,900 5,059,489 6,716,389
2020 1,656,900 5,059,489 6,716,389
2021 1,656,900 5,059,489 6,716,389
2022-2026 $       36,905,000 7,483,720 22,852,192 67,240,912
2027-2031 76,350,000 3,806,286 11,622,825 91,779,111
2032-2036           36,745,000               208,383                 636,315            37,589,698
  
Total  $      150,000,000  $      19,782,889  $         60,408,777  $      230,191,666

 
 
NOTE 7 - VARIABLE RATE DEMAND BONDS 
 
Included in long-term debt is $325,200,000 of Series 2010 L variable rate demand bonds maturing serially at 
various dates from January 1, 2017 and January 1, 2037.  The bonds are payable solely from the revenues 
and assets pledged to the payment thereof pursuant to the Bond Trust Indentures.  The redemption schedule 
for these bonds is included in the bond redemption schedule. 
 

 
NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Bond Bank contributed to the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (PERF), which is administered by 
INPRS as a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan.  PERF was established to provide 
retirement, disability and survivor benefits to full-time employees of the State of Indiana not covered by another 
plan, those political subdivisions that elect to participate in the retirement plan, and certain INPRS employees. 
 There are two tiers to the PERF Plan.  The first is the Public Employees’ Defined Benefit Plan (PERF Hybrid 
Plan) and the second is the Public Employees’ Annuity Savings Account Only Plan (PERF ASA Only Plan).  
 
There are two aspects to the PERF Hybrid Plan defined benefit structure.  The first portion is the monthly 
defined benefit pension that is funded by the employer.  The second portion of the PERF Hybrid Plan benefit 
structure is the annuity savings account (ASA) that supplements the defined benefit at retirement.  The PERF 
ASA Only Plan is funded by an employer and a member for the use of the member, or the member’s 
beneficiaries or survivors, after the member’s retirement. 
 
Members are required to participate in the ASA.  The ASA consists of the member’s contributions, set by 
statute at 3 percent of compensation as defined by IC 5-10.2-3-2 for PERF plus the interest/earnings or 
losses credited to the member’s account.  The employer may elect to contribute on behalf of a member.  
 
In addition, under certain conditions, members may elect to make additional voluntary contributions of up to 
10 percent of their compensation into their ASA.  A member’s contributions and interest credits belong to the 
member and do not belong to the State or political subdivision.  
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

Investments in the members’ ASA are individually directed and controlled by plan participants who direct the 
investment of their account balances among eight investment options, with varying degrees of risk and return 
potential.  All contributions made to a member’s account (member contribution subaccount and employer 
contribution subaccount) are invested as a combined total according to the member’s investment elections.  
Members may make changes to their investment directions daily and investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Retirement Benefits – Defined Benefit Pension 
 
The PERF Hybrid Plan retirement benefit consists of the sum of a defined pension benefit provided by 
employer contributions plus the amount credited to the member’s ASA.  Pension benefits (non ASA) vest after 
10 years of creditable service.  The vesting period is eight years for certain elected officials.  Members are 
immediately vested in their ASA.  At retirement, a member may choose to receive a lump sum payment of the 
amount credited to the member’s ASA, receive the amount as an annuity, or leave the contributions invested 
with INPRS.  Vested PERF members leaving a covered position, who wait 30 days after termination, may 
withdraw their ASA and will not forfeit creditable service or a full retirement benefit.  However, if a member is 
eligible for a full retirement at the time of the withdrawal request, he/she will have to begin drawing his/her 
pension benefit in order to withdraw the ASA.  A non-vested member who terminates employment prior to 
retirement may withdraw his/her ASA after 30 days, but by doing so, forfeits his/her creditable service.  A 
member who returns to covered service and works no less than six months in a covered position may reclaim 
his/her forfeited creditable service.  
 
A member who has reached age 65 and has at least 10 years of creditable service is eligible for normal 
retirement and, as such, is entitled to 100 percent of the pension benefit component.  This annual pension 
benefit is equal to 1.1 percent times the average annual compensation times the number of years of 
creditable service.  The average annual compensation in this calculation uses the highest 20 calendar 
quarters of salary in a covered position.  All 20 calendar quarters do not need to be continuous, but they must 
be in groups of four consecutive calendar quarters.  The same calendar quarter may not be included in two 
different groups.  
 
For PERF members who serve as an elected official, the highest one year (total of four consecutive quarters) 
of annual compensation is used.  Member contributions paid by the employer on behalf of the member and 
severance pay up to $2,000 are included as part of the member’s annual compensation.  
 
A member who has reached age 60 and has at least 15 years of creditable service is eligible for normal 
retirement and, as such, is entitled to 100 percent of the pension benefit.  A member who is at least 55 years 
old and whose age plus years of creditable service is at least 85 is entitled to 100 percent of the benefits as 
described above.  
 
A member who has reached at least age 50 and has at least 15 years of creditable service is eligible for early 
retirement with a reduced pension.  A member retiring early receives a percentage of the normal annual 
pension benefit.  The percentage of the pension benefit at retirement remains the same for the member’s 
lifetime.  For age 59, the early retirement percentage of the normal annual pension benefit is 89 percent.  This 
amount is reduced five percentage points per year (e.g., age 58 is 84 percent) to age 50 being 44 percent.  
 
The monthly pension benefits for members in pay status may be increased periodically as cost of living 
adjustments (COLA).  Such increases are not guaranteed by statute, have historically been provided on an 
“ad hoc” basis, and can only be granted by the Indiana General Assembly.  There was no COLA for the years 
ended June 30, 2016 or 2015; however, eligible members received a one-time check (a.k.a.13th check) in 
lieu of a permanent COLA increase in fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.  
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

The PERF Hybrid Plan also provides disability and survivor benefits.  A member who has at least five years of 
creditable service and becomes disabled while in active service, on FMLA leave, receiving workers’ 
compensation benefits, or receiving employer-provided disability insurance benefits may retire for the 
duration of the disability, if the member has qualified for social security disability benefits and has furnished 
proof of the qualification.  The disability benefit is calculated the same as that for a normal retirement without 
reduction for early retirement.  The minimum benefit is $180 per month, or the actuarial equivalent.  
 
Upon the death in service of a member with 15 or more years of creditable service as of January 1, 2007, a 
survivor benefit may be paid to the surviving spouse to whom the member had been married for two or more 
years, or surviving dependent children under the age of 18.  This payment is equal to the benefit which would 
have been payable to a beneficiary if the member had retired at age 50 or at death, whichever is later, under 
an effective election of the joint and survivor option available for retirement benefits.  A surviving spouse or 
surviving dependent children are also entitled to a survivor benefit upon the death in service after January 1, 
2007, of a member who was at least 65 years of age and had at least 10 but not more than 14 years of 
creditable service.  
 
INPRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  That report may be obtained at http://www.inprs.in.gov/. 
 
Significant Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability is determined by INPRS actuaries as part of their annual actuarial valuation for each 
defined benefit retirement plan.  Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts (e.g., salaries, credited service) and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of 
events far into the future (e.g., mortality, disabilities, retirements, employment terminations).  Actuarially 
determined amounts are subject to continual review and potential modifications, as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  Key methods and 
assumptions used in calculating the total pension liability in the latest actuarial valuations are presented 
below: 
 

Asset valuation date: June 30, 2016 
 
Liability valuation date and method: June 30, 2015 – Member census data as of June 30, 

2015 was used in the valuation and adjusted, where 
appropriate, to reflect changes between June 30, 2015 
and 2016.  Standard actuarial roll forward techniques 
were used to project the liability computed as of June 
30, 2015 to June 30, 2016.  

  
Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal - level percent of payroll 
 
Experience study date: Computed April 2015 and reflects the experience period 

from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014 
 
Investment rate of return: 6.75% 

 
COLA: 1.0% 
 
Future salary increases, including inflation: 2.50% - 4.25% 
 
Inflation: 2.25%    
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

The long-term return expectation for the defined benefit retirement plan has been determined by using a 
building-block approach and assumes a time horizon, as defined in the INPRS Investment Policy Statement.  
A forecasted rate of inflation serves as the baseline for the return expectation.  Various real return premiums 
over the baseline inflation rate have been established for each asset class.  The long-term expected nominal 
rate of return has been determined by calculating a weighted average of the expected real return premiums 
for each asset class, adding the projected inflation rate, and adding the expected return from rebalancing 
uncorrelated asset classes.  

 

        Geometric Basis 
        Long-term Expected 
       Target Allocation Real Rate of Return 
 

   Private equity 10.0% 5.6% 
   Fixed income – Ex inflation-linked 22.0% 2.1% 
   Fixed income – Inflation-linked 10.0% 0.7% 
   Commodities 8.0% 2.0% 
   Real estate 7.5% 3.0% 
   Absolute return 10.0% 3.9% 
   Risk parity 10.0% 5.0% 
 
Total pension liability for the Plan was calculated using the discount rate of 6.75 percent.  The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from employers and where 
applicable from the members, would at the minimum be made at the actuarially determined required rates 
computed in accordance with the current funding policy adopted by the INPRS Board, and contributions 
required by the State (the non-employer contributing entity) would be made as stipulated by State statute.  
Projected inflows from investment earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of 
return (6.75 percent).  Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position were projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current Plan members; therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefits to 
determine the total pension liability for the Plan. 
 
Net pension liability is sensitive to changes in the discount rate, and to illustrate the potential impact the 
following table presents the net pension liability of the Plan calculated using the discount rate of 6.75 percent, 
as well as what the Plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point lower (5.75%), or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 
 
 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase 
 (5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%) 
 
 $803,052  $559,136  $356,405  
 
Investment Valuation and Benefit Payment Policies 
 

The pooled and non-pooled investments are reported at fair value by INPRS.  Pension, disability, special 
death benefits, and distributions of contributions and interest are recognized when due and payable to 
members or beneficiaries.  Benefits are paid once the retirement or survivor applications have been 
processed and approved.  Distributions of contributions and interest are distributions from inactive, non-
vested members’ annuity savings accounts.  These distributions may be requested by members or auto-
distributed by the fund when certain criteria are met. 
 
Funding Policy 

The State is obligated by statute to make contributions to the PERF Hybrid Plan or the PERF ASA Only Plan. 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Any political subdivision that elects to participate in the PERF Hybrid Plan is obligated by statute to make 
contributions to the Plan.  The required contributions are determined by the INPRS Board of Trustees based 
on actuarial investigation and valuation in accordance with IC 5-10.2-2-11.  The funding policy provides for 
periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual 
covered payroll, are sufficient to fund the pension benefits when they become due.  As PERF is a cost-
sharing plan, all risks and costs, including benefit costs, are shared proportionately by the participating 
employers.  During fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, all participating employers were required to 
contribute 11.2 percent of covered payroll for members employed by the State.  For the PERF ASA Only 
Plan, all participating employers were also required to contribute 11.2 percent of covered payroll.  In 
accordance to IC 5-10.3-12-24, the amount credited from the employer’s contribution rate to the member’s 
account shall not be less that 3 percent and not be greater than the normal cost of the fund which was 4.7 
percent for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and any amount not credited to the member’s 
account shall be applied to the pooled assets of the PERF Hybrid Plan.  
 
The PERF Hybrid Plan or PERF ASA Only Plan members contribute 3 percent of covered payroll to their ASA, 
which is not used to fund the defined benefit pension for the PERF Hybrid Plan. For the PERF Hybrid Plan, the 
employer may elect to make the contributions on behalf of the member.  The employer shall pay the member’s 
contributions on behalf of the member for the PERF ASA Only Plan.  In addition, members of the PERF Hybrid 
Plan (effective July 1, 2014, the PERF ASA Only Plan may also participate) may elect to make additional 
voluntary contributions, under certain criteria, of up to 10 percent of their compensation into their ASA. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
 

At December 31, 2016, the Bond Bank reported a liability of $559,136 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The Bond Bank’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the Bond 
Bank’s wages as a proportion of total wages for the PERF Hybrid Plan.  The proportionate share used at the 
June 30, 2016 measurement date was 0.0001232.  
 

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Bond Bank recognized pension expense of $70,604, which 
included net amortization of deferred amounts from changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions of $(35,066).  At December 31, 2016, the Bond Bank 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the PERF Hybrid Plan 
from the following sources: 
 

  Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
  Of Resources of Resources 
 

 Differences between expected and actual experience $  12,527 $   1,032 
 

 Net differences between project and actual earnings 
  on pension plan investments 122,980 31,460 
 

 Changes of assumptions 24,670  
 

 Changes in proportion and differences between the Bond 
  Bank’s contributions and proportionate share of contributions     10,161    78,563  
 

 Total recognized in pension expense (income) based on table $170,338  $111,055  
 

 Pension contribution subsequent to measurement date     32,000                  
 

 Total $202,338  $111,055 
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense (income) as follows: 

 

 Year Ending 
 December 31,  Amount 
 
 2017 $(11,393)  
 2018 (911)  
 2019 (32,096)   
 2020   (14,883)  
 
  $(59,283)  
 
 
NOTE 9 - MATERIAL AGREEMENTS 
 
The Bond Bank pays the annual property management and insurance costs for Union Station on behalf of the 
City of Indianapolis.  Property management and insurance costs of $269,377 and $198,873 in 2016 and 
2015, respectively, were paid under the terms of this one-year agreement.  The property management 
agreement renews annually, and has been in effect since 2003. 
 
The Bond Bank pays a retainer under terms of a Professional Services Agreement on behalf of the City of 
Indianapolis to Bose Public Affairs Group.  The one-year contract expires June 21, 2017. As of December 31, 
2016, the Bond Bank paid $151,069 in legal fees associated with this agreement. 
 
The Bond Bank provides primary operational financial support to Develop Indy under terms of a Professional 
Services Agreement to provide economic development services for Indianapolis and Marion County on behalf 
of the Greater Indianapolis Chamber of Commerce, Inc.  The 2016 contract expires December 31, 2016.  As 
of December 31, 2016, the Bond Bank paid $900,000 in fees associated with this agreement.  In 2015, Bond 
Bank paid $1,503,500 to Develop Indy under terms of a previous agreement for economic development 
services. 
 
Under Board approval, the Bond Bank also funded certain nonrecurring expenditures on behalf of the City of 
Indianapolis including $260,000 to the Reuben Engagement Center; $75,000 for dues for the Indiana 
Association of Cities and Towns and $30,539 for various recurring sponsorships and awards. 
 
 
NOTE 10 - CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Bond Bank’s arbitrage rebate calculations are subject to audit.  There is a pending Internal Revenue 
Service examination where a bond refunding benefit was not properly included in an arbitrage rebate 
calculation. It is early in the process of obtaining a resolution of this matter and, while there may be a liability, 
the extent of that liability has not yet been determined.     
 
 
NOTE 11 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 
 
The Bond Bank has loans to qualified entities, all of whom are located in Marion County, Indiana. 
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NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
In February 2017, the Bond Bank issued Series 2017 A in the amount of $59,425,000 to purchase the City of 
Indianapolis, Indiana, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 A, the proceeds of which will be used to fund 
projects in a variety of districts.  The bonds bear interest that varies between 3.125% and 5.000%, and 
mature January 15, 2038. 
 
In February 2017, the Bond Bank issued Series 2017 B in the amount of $11,900,000 to purchase the City of 
Indianapolis, Indiana Taxable Public Safety Communication Systems and Computer Facilities District Bonds, 
Series 2017 B, the proceeds of which will be used to fund Public Safety Communication Systems and 
Computer Facilities District projects.  The bonds bear interest that varies between 1.60% and 3.05%, and 
mature January 15, 2024. 
 
Payables and receivables listed in Notes 3 and 4 have been paid subsequent to year end in accordance with 
scheduled maturities. 
 

 



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK 
 

SCHEDULE OF THE BOND BANK’S PROPRTIONATE SHARE 
OF THE NET PENSION LIABLITY (UNAUDITED) 

 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE’S RETIREMENT FUND 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 
 

 
 2016 2015 2014  
 
Bond Bank’s proportion of the net position liability 0.01232% 0.01443% 0.01499%  
 
Bond Bank’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $559,136 $587,720 $393,927  
 
Bond Bank’s covered-employee payroll $590,417 $691,222 $731,734  
 
Bond Bank’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
 as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 94.7% 85.0% 53.8%  
 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
 pension liability 75.3% 77.3% 84.3%  
 
 
*The effort and cost to re-create financial statement information for 10 years was not practical. 
Information was prepared prospectively from June 30, 2014 for GASB Statement No. 68 purposes. 
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THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK 
 

SCHEDULE OF THE BOND BANK’S CONTRIBUTIONS (UNAUDITED) 
 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE’S RETIREMENT FUND 
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

 
 

 2016 2015 2014  
 
Contractually required contribution $  62,324  $  59,996  $  53,059  
 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution $  62,324  $  59,996  $  53,059   
 
Contribution deficiency $        0     $        0   $       0     
 
Bond Bank’s covered-employee payroll $590,417  $691,222  $731,734  
 
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 10.6%  8.7%  7.3%  
 
*The effort and cost to re-create financial statement information for 10 years was not practical. 
Information was prepared prospectively from June 30, 2014 for GASB Statement No. 68 purposes. 
 

 
 



SOMERSET 
CPAs AND ADVISORS 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control and Compliance 

Board of Directors 
THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK 
Indianapolis, Indiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 

by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of THE INDIANAPOLIS LOCAL 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND BANK (the Bond Bank), which comprise the statement of financial position as 

of December 31, 2016, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and 

cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated June 19, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Bond Bank's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Bond Bank's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Bond Bank's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 

internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 

material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 

internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal 
control, described in the Audit Wrap-Up report, that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 
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Compliance and Other Matters  
Trinity Metals, LLC 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bond Bank’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Bond Bank’s Response to Findings 
 
The Bond Bank’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the Audit Wrap-Up report. 
The Bond Bank’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
June 19, 2017 
 


